
Carmel Chapel, next to the New Inn, was built by the 
Wesleyan Methodists in 1875 and designed by Richard 
Owens of Liverpool. 

The former Ebenezer Chapel, by the bridge at the 

entrance to the village, was built by the Independents 

(Congregationalists) in 1895: it is now a private house. Its 

predecessor, now a cottage, stands beside the Pennant 

road. 
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